DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Land Management

[LLNVL02000.L14300000.ET0000; N-56170; MO# 4500061003]

Public Land Order No. 7825; Extension of Public Land Order No. 7060; Nevada

AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management,

Interior.

ACTION: Public Land Order.

SUMMARY: This order extends the duration of the withdrawal created by Public Land Order No. 7060, issued effective June 3, 1994, for an additional 20-year period. The extension is necessary to continue protection of the Sacramento Pass Recreation Area in White Pine County, Nevada, which would otherwise expire on June 2, 2014.

DATES: Effective Date: June 3, 2014.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Elena Montenegro-Long, Realty Specialist, BLM Schell Field Office at 775–289–1800, or email: emontenegro@blm.gov. Persons who use a telecommunications device for the deaf (TDD) may call the Federal Information Relay Service (FIRS) at 1–800–877–8339 to reach the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) contact person during normal business hours. The FIRS is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, to leave a message or question with the above individual. You will receive a reply during normal business hours.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The purpose for which the withdrawal was first made requires this extension to continue the protection of the Sacramento Pass Recreation Area resource values and the capital investment in the area. The withdrawal extended by this order will now expire on June 2, 2034, unless as a result of a review conducted prior to the expiration date pursuant to Section 204(f) of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976, 43 U.S.C. 1714(f), the Secretary determines that the withdrawal shall be further extended.

Order

By virtue of the authority vested in the Secretary of the Interior by Section 204 of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976, 43 U.S.C. 1714, it is ordered as follows:

Public Land Order No. 7060 (59 FR 28790 (1994)), which withdrew 464.93 acres of public land from settlement, sale, location or entry under the general land laws, including the United States mining laws (30 U.S.C. Ch. 2), but not from leasing under the mineral leasing

laws, is hereby extended for an additional 20-year period until June 2, 2034

Dated: May 29, 2014.

Janice M. Schneider,

Assistant Secretary—Land and Minerals Management.

[FR Doc. 2014–13441 Filed 6–6–14; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4310-HC-P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Land Management

[14XL.LLIDT03000. LF2200000.JB0000. LFESHT800000.241A]

Notice of Temporary Closures on Public Lands in Blaine County, Idaho

AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management, Interior.

ACTION: Notice of Temporary Closure.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that portions of the Beaver Creek Fire are closed year-round to human entry for the period specified. The closure is in effect on public lands administered by the Shoshone Field Office, Bureau of Land Management (BLM).

DATES: The closures will be in effect on July 9, 2014 and will remain in effect until June 30, 2015 or until rescinded or modified by the authorized officer or designated Federal officer.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Elizabeth Maclean, Shoshone Field Manager, 400 West F Street, Shoshone, Idaho 83352, via email at emaclean@blm.gov, or phone 208–732–7200. Persons who use a telecommunications device for the deaf (TDD) may call the Federal Information Relay Service (FIRS) at 1–800–877–8339 to contact the above individuals during normal business hours. The FIRS is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, to leave a message or question with the above individuals. You will receive a reply during normal hours.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Beaver Creek Fire closure affects public lands burned in August 2013 by the Beaver Creek Fire, west of Hailey, Idaho. The parcels of public lands affected by these closures, depicted on the Beaver Creek Rehabilitation Recreation Entry Closure Maps 1, 2, and 3 are located at the Twin Falls District BLM Office in Twin Falls, Idaho. The legal description of the affected public lands is:

Boise Meridian, Blaine County, Idaho

T. 3 N., R. 17 E., Sec. 13, S½SW¼, NE¼SE¼, S½SE¼; and Sec. 14, NW¼SW¼, S½SW¼, S½SE¼; and Sec. 23, Lot 1, NE¹/4NW¹/4, N¹/2NE¹/4, SE¹/4NE¹/4; and
Sec. 25, S¹/2SW¹/4, SW¹/4SE¹/4; and
Sec. 26, SE¹/4SE¹/4; and
Sec. 35, SE¹/4SE¹/4.
T. 2 N., R. 17 E.,
See Map 2 and 3.
T. 2 N., R 18 E.,
See Map 2.

Containing 3,989 acres, more or less.

This closure is intended to slow the spread of noxious weeds; allow planted shrub, forb, and grass species to become established; and allow existing plants to recover which will help stabilize hillsides. Once the hillsides begin to stabilize the designated trail system in the area will be reconstructed. The BLM anticipates that the trail system will be open for public use by June 30, 2015.

The BLM will post closure signs at main entry points to the closed areas and/or other locations on-site. This closure will be posted in the Twin Falls District BLM offices. Maps of the affected area and other documents associated with this closure are available at 400 West F Street, Shoshone, Idaho 83352. Under the authority of Section 303(a) of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (43 U.S.C. 1733(a)), 43 CFR 8360.0-7, and 43 CFR 8364.1, the BLM will enforce the following rules within the Beaver Creek Fire closure: All human entry onto the lands described above, by any means, is prohibited while this closure order is in effect.

Exemptions: The following persons are exempt from this order: Federal, State, and local officers and employees in the performance of their official duties; members of organized rescue or fire-fighting forces in the performance of their official duties; any landowner or landowner employee within the closure area; and persons with written authorization from the BLM.

Penalties: On public lands under section 303(a) of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (43 U.S.C. 1733(a), 43 CFR 8360.0–7 and 43 CFR 8364.1, any person who violates the provisions of this closure may be tried before a United States Magistrate and fined no more than \$1,000 or imprisoned for no more than 12 months, or both. Such violations may also be subject to enhanced fines provided for by 18 U.S.C. 3571.

Authority: 43 CFR 8364.1.

Elizabeth Maclean,

 $Sho shone\ Field\ Office\ Manager.$ [FR Doc. 2014–13400 Filed 6–6–14; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4310-GG-P